
 
Visit the Township's Web Site www.twp.ferguson.pa.us  and sign up for Notify Me! to receive email notices about 
Township Information 
 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, July 1, 2019 
7:00 PM 

  

 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. APPOINTMENT OF WARD II SUPERVISOR 

 

III. CITIZENS INPUT  
 

III. SPECIAL REPORTS 

1. Centre Region Parks & Recreation Authority  
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. June 17, 2019, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 

 
V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

1. Review of Plastic Bag Impact Fee Draft Ordinance 
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consent Agenda 
2. Zoning Appeals/Requests for Variances: 

a. White Hall Regional Park, Phase 1, 24-004-,094G 
b. 3005 Enterprise Drive, 24-465-61 

3. Review Draft Personnel Policies establishing “Remote Work” Guidelines/Paid Family Leave 
4. COG / Regional Committee Appointments 
5. Request to Reschedule Public Hearing on Pine Hall TTD General Master Plan 
6. Appointment of Ferguson Township Planning Commission Member 
7. Scheduling 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program Budget Special Meetings 
 

VII. REPORTS 
1. COG Committee Reports  
2. Other Regional Reports 
3. Staff Reports 

 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 

IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – JULY 
1. Ferguson Township Administrative offices closed Thursday, July 4th for the holiday 
2. Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan Meeting, 6:00 p.m., July 10th, St. Paul Lutheran Church 
3. Coffee & Conversation, Naked Egg Café, 8:00 – 9:30 a.m., Friday, July 19th, 320 Pine Grove Rd. 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 



Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, July 1, 2019 
7:00 p.m. 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. APPOINTMENT OF WARD II SUPERVISOR

III. CITIZEN’S INPUT

III. SPECIAL REPORTS 10 minutes 

1. Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority – Bill Keough

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. June 17, 2019, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. REVIEW OF DRAFT PLASTIC BAG IMPACT FEE DRAFT ORDINANCE 20 minutes 

Narrative 
In response to a petition filed before the Board of Supervisors in accordance with Section 9.02 of the 
Home Rule Charter, Group Petitions, the Board conducted a public hearing on November 19, 2018, after 
which staff was directed to research similar ordinances and any legal concerns relative to single-use 
plastic bag bans and impact fees in the Commonwealth and other states. A stakeholder engagement 
and research project was concluded by the Penn State College of Law, and Dr. Lara Fowler presented 
the conclusions to the Board on May 20th. A copy of the material provided at the presentation is included 
with the agenda. At the meeting, the Board directed staff to prepare a draft ordinance imposing an impact 
fee on single-use plastic bags for review and comment. The Township Manager has prepared the draft 
ordinance, and it has been included with the agenda for discussion this evening. If the Board is prepared 
to move forward with the ordinance as drafted, a motion may be introduced to direct staff to advertise 
the ordinance for public hearing and action. The Township Manager has continuing concern that 
adoption of the ordinance as drafted is premature and continuing public engagement at a regional level 
is warranted prior to any local regulations being enacted.  

Recommended motion: That the Board of Supervisors authorize advertisement of an ordinance for public 
hearing imposing an impact fee on single-use plastic bags in Ferguson Township.  

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors review and comment on the draft ordinance. 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, July 1, 2019 
Page 2 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. CONSENT AGENDA         5 minutes 

a. Special Events Permit – Stonebridge Fourth of July Parade 
b. Donation Request – People’s Choice Festival, $250.00 
c. 2017-C1 Pay Application:  $75,630.58 
d. 2019-C31 Pay Application: $4,100 

 

2. ZONING APPEALS/REQUESTS FOR VARIANCE 

a. Request for Variance – Whitehall Road Regional Park – Phase 1  5 minutes 
 
Narrative 
Pamela Salokangas, Director of Centre Region Parks and Recreation, is requesting three (3) 
variance requests for Blue Course Drive/Whitehall Road intersection, Tax Parcel 24-004-094G:  
1) To Minimize landscape buffer requirements along the park perimeter; 2) Reduce minimum 
canopy tree caliper size at planting to 1”; and 3) Reduce minimum understory tree caliper size at 
planting to 1”.  These requests are in association with the recently submitted Land Development 
Plan for Whitehall Road Regional Park.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the three (3) variance 
requests for Whitehall Road Regional Park – Phase 1. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the variance requests. 

 
b. Request for Variance – 3005 Enterprise Drive     5 minutes 

 
Narrative 
Gary G. Moyer of J&G Moyer, LLC, is requesting to enclose the 12’ x 28’ loading dock on the 
north end of the building at 3005 Enterprise Drive, Tax Parcel 24-465-61.  The dock currently 
has a foundation and a roof.  The applicant is proposing to add three walls to enclose the space 
for additional storage and to improve the exterior appearance.  The variance is relief to submit a 
land development plan on the basis that the proposed expansion will not alter the previously 
approved footprint.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the request for variance 
for 3005 Enterprise Drive.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the variance request. 

 
3. REVIEW OF DRAFT PERSONNEL POLICIES ESTABLISHING “REMOTE WORK” GUIDELINES 

AND PAID FAMILY LEAVE        20 minutes 
 

Narrative 
The Township has adopted a Personnel Policy Manual that governs employment-related standards, 
procedures, and practices for all uniformed and non-uniformed employees. At the January 7th Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Supervisors, while amending the Personnel Policy Manual, the Board directed 
staff to explore draft policies establishing “remote work” guidelines and paid maternity/paternity leave.  
Provided with the agenda is a copy of each draft policy for review.  Amendments to the Personnel Policy 
Manual are adopted by the Board by resolution.  At this time, the Board is requested to review the 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, July 1, 2019 
Page 3 

proposed policies and suggest any modifications or amendments that may be warranted. If action is 
warranted, the Board may consider directing staff to prepare a resolution adopting each of the policies 
and incorporating them into the Ferguson Township Personnel Policy Manual.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors direct staff to advertise a resolution for public 
hearing on amendments to the Ferguson Township Personnel Policy Manual adding policies 
establishing “remote work” guidelines and paid family leave. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors review and comment on the draft policies. 

 
4. COG / REGIONAL COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS     10 minutes 

 
Narrative 
With the resignation of Mr. Buckland from the Board of Supervisors, it is requested that the Board take 
action to appoint a new representative to the Centre Region Council of Governments and Regional 
Committees on which he served.  Mr. Buckland was the Township’s representative on the COG Public 
Services and Environmental Committee; COG Facilities Committee; and Spring Creek Watershed 
Commission.  
 
Recommended motion 1:  That the Board of Supervisors appoint _____ to the COG Public Services and 
Environmental Committee. 
 
Recommended motion 2:  That the Board of Supervisors appoint _____ to the Ad Hoc COG Facilities 
Committee.  
 
Recommended motion 3: That the Board of Supervisors appoint _____ to the Spring Creek Watershed 
Commission 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors appoint a Supervisor to serve the remainder of Mr. Buckland’s term on 
COG and Regional Committees to which he was appointed.  

 
5. REQUEST TO RESCHEDULE THE PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PINE HALL TRADITIONAL 

TOWN DEVELOPMENT GENERAL MASTER PLAN     5 minutes 
 

Narrative 
The Board of Supervisors initially scheduled a public hearing on the Pine Hall Traditional Town 
Development General Master Plan for July 1st. Subsequently, at the request of the applicant, Residential 
Housing, LLC., the Board rescheduled the public hearing for July 15th. Due to scheduling conflicts and 
some remaining unresolved issues with the Traffic Impact Study, the applicant is requesting a further 
delay as outlined in the attached letter. The current expiration date of the plan as submitted is August 
6th, which has been extended to August 30th by the applicant to allow the public hearing to be 
rescheduled should the Board desire. 
 
Recommended motion 3: That the Board of Supervisors reschedule the public hearing on the Pine Hall 
Traditional Town Development General Master Plan for Monday, August 5, 2019. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors grant the request to reschedule the public hearing.  

 
 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, July 1, 2019 
Page 4 

6. APPOINTMENT OF FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER  
            5 minutes 
 

Narrative 
With the appointment of Ms. Strickland to the Board of Supervisors to fill the remainder of the Mr. 
Buckland’s unexpired term, a vacancy on the Core Board of the Ferguson Township Planning 
Commission must be filled. A current Alternate on the Planning Commission, Ms. Shannon Holiday, has 
expressed a willingness to be appointed to the Core Board. The Board of Supervisors is asked to take 
action to appoint Ms. Holiday to the Core Board of the Planning Commission. Otherwise, the Board may 
decide to accept applications for applicants and make an appointment at an upcoming meeting or choose 
to leave the seat vacant until the Reorganizational Meeting in January 2020. Ms. Strickland’s term 
expires December 31, 2021. As a matter of record, Mr. Bill Keough was appointed to serve as Chairman 
of the Planning Commission for the remainder of the year. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors appoint Shannon Holiday to the Core Board of 
the Ferguson Township Planning Commission for a term expiring December 31, 2021. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors appoint Shannon Holiday to the Core Board of the Ferguson Township 
Planning Commission. 

 
7. SCHEDULING 2020 – 2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM BUDGET SPECIAL 

MEETINGS          5 minutes 
 

Narrative 
The Ferguson Township 2020 – 2024 Capital Improvement Program Budget is drafted and the document 
is tentatively scheduled for adoption by the Board on August 19th. The Board has historically scheduled 
two public special meetings to review the draft CIP and incorporate any changes prior to review and 
adoption of the plan. Staff is suggesting the Board consider two of the following dates and times for the 
special meetings: 6:00 p.m. on June 23rd, 24th, or 25th. The meetings will be held in Conference Room 2 
of the Ferguson Township Municipal Building.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors schedule the 2020 – 2024 Capital Improvement 
Program Budget Worksessions for ____ and ____ at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors schedule two worksessions to review the 2020 – 2024 Capital 
Improvement Program Budget. 

 
VII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS               5 minutes 

a. Executive Committee 
 

2.  OTHER REGIONAL REPORTS        5 minutes 

a. Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization Coordinating Committee 
 

3. STAFF REPORTS         15 minutes 

a. Township Manager 
b. Interim Planning and Zoning Director  
c. Public Works Director 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, July 1, 2019 
Page 5 

 
VIII.  COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – JULY 

a) Ferguson Township Administrative offices closed Thursday, July 4th for the holiday 
b) Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan Meeting, 6:00 p.m., July 10th, St. Paul Lutheran Church 
c) Coffee & Conversation, Naked Egg Café, 8:00 – 9:30 a.m., Friday, July 19th, 320 Pine Grove Rd. 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 



 
FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 17, 2019 

7:00 PM 
 

 
I. ATTENDANCE 

The Board of Supervisors held its second regular meeting of the month on Monday, 
June 17, 2019, at the Ferguson Township Municipal Building.  In attendance were: 
 
Board: Steve Miller 

Richard Killian 
Peter Buckland 
Laura Dininni 
 

Staff: Dave Pribulka, Township Manager 
Lindsay Schoch, Community Planner 
Dave Modricker, Public Works Director 
Chris Albright, Chief of Police 
 

Others in attendance included:  Faith Norris, Recording Secretary; Judge Katie Oliver; Lisa Strickland; Wes 
Glebe; Elizabeth Treadway, Wood; Donald Bainbridge; Michelle Spiering; Lou Prato; Missy Schoonover; 
Robin Homer; Ford Stryker; S. Chambers; Jeremie Thompson; Martha Hummel; Morgen Hummel. 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. Miller called the Monday, June 17, 2019, regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   
 

III. APPOINTMENT OF AT-LARGE SUPERVISOR 

Mr. Miller opened the floor for nominations for the At-Large Supervisor position.  He noted the Board 
members had interviewed a number of qualified applicants in scheduled worksessons. 
 
Ms. Dininni nominated Lisa Strickland.  No other nominations were made. 
Roll Call vote:  Mr. Buckland – YES; Ms. Dininni – YES; Mr. Killian – YES; Mr. Miller – YES. 
Ms. Strickland was sworn in by Judge Oliver. 
 

IV. CITIZENS INPUT  

Mr. Glebe voiced his concern for the Pine Hall habitat on possible rodent issues in relation to acreage cleared 
near his property that had those types of issues. 
 

V. SPECIAL REPORTS   

1. State College Borough Water Authority.  Mr. Glebe stated that he did not attend the Authority’s last 
meeting.  He reported that Mr. Peterson had spoken on the topic of adding fluoride to water; discussion 
on a comprehensive water production monitoring program; update on meters replaced; and One Water 
Plan update.  The Water Quality Report is complete and available on the Authority’s website.  
 

2. Stormwater Fee Feasibility Study Phase II.  Ms. Treadway presented an overview and history of Phase 
I and future steps for Phase II.  A full slide presentation was provided in the packet.  Strategies were 
discussed along with cost estimations, user fee methodologies and a GIS data update.  Target date for 
review is fall 2019.  Critical issues were discussed that the advisory committee will be working on, i.e., 
private system serving a public purpose. 

 
Discussion followed on neighborhood classifications, stormwater requirements and fee assessments.  
The advisory committee will be discussing service areas.  A Board member voiced concern with 
stormwater management related to mitigation.  Mr. Pribulka thanked the Township’s GIS staff Ms. 
Aneckstein and Mr. Progar for the work they did on developing the impervious layer map. 
 
Ms. Spiering, representing the Golden Orchard Condo Association, expressed concern about the timing 
of the fee implementation. 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, June 17, 2019 
Page 2 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of May 20, 2019.    
Mr. Buckland seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. CONTINUED DISCUSSION – RUSHCLIFFE STREET PARKING CONCERNS 

Mr. Miller reviewed the item’s tabled motion from the previous Board meeting.  The motion does not apply 
to what the Board wants to accomplish.  Mr. Miller asked for a motion to table this item. 
 
Mr. Killian moved that the Board of Supervisors postpone the tabled motion infinitely.  Mr. Buckland 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the history of the parking concerns and the outcome of the staff field view and 
meeting with community members. The favored option from the residents of Rushcliffe was to designate 
the street one-way from Circleville Road to Havershire Boulevard and prohibit parking on the inner side 
of the street. Staff reviewed concerns they had with that option, and discussed the analysis associated 
with a one-way street designation. Staff reviewed other available options, as well. 

 
Mr. Buckland moved that the Board of Supervisors direct staff to do a study to see if Rushcliffe Street 
meets one-way warrants.  Ms. Dininni seconded the motion.  The motion passed 3 to 2 with Messrs. 
Killian and Miller dissenting. 
 
Mr. Buckland moved that the Board of Supervisors direct staff to continue to engage with the 
homeowners association for on-street parking solutions.  Ms. Dininni seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Miller called for a five minute recess.  
 

b. HUMMEL SUBDIVISION PLAN DATE JUNE 10, 2019 

Ms. Schoch reviewed the history of the plan and the administrative comments that were provided.  
 
Mr. Buckland moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Hummel Subdivision Plan dated June 
10, 2019, subject to the remaining conditions as outlined in the Interim Director of Planning and Zoning 
memorandum dated June 12, 2019.  Mr. Killian seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Treasurer’s Reports for March and April 
b. Voucher Reports for April and May 
c. 2018-C5 Pay Application #2 – Chestnut Ridge Pipe & Road CMP Lining:  $236,917.50 
d. 2019-C6 Pay Application #2 – Curb & Ramp Upgrades:  $49,082.15 
e. 2019-C8 Pay Application #1 – Pavement Markings:  $34,301.53 
f. 2019-C31 Pay Application – NexGen:  $23,000.00 
g. Public Works Maintenance Facility – Recording Extension Request 
 
Mr. Killian moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Consent Agenda with the acceptance of the 
Treasurer’s Report.  Mr. Buckland seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, June 17, 2019 
Page 3 

It was clarified that the Board cannot approve a Treasure’s Report and that it needs accepted.  The Board 
of Supervisors unanimously accepted the Treasurer’s reports for March and April 2019.     
 

2. PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION FOR A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH COMCAST FOR 
FRANCHISE FEE PAYMENTS DUE TO THE TOWNSHIP  
 
Mr. Pribulka presented the topic for the Board’s consideration as provided with the agenda. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution approving a settlement agreement 
with Comcast of Colorado/Pennsylvania/West Virginia, LLC for franchise fee payments due to the 
Township.  Mr. Buckland seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call vote:  Mr. Buckland – YES; Ms. Dininni – YES; Mr. Killian – YES: Ms. Strickland – YES: Mr. 
Miller – YES. 
 

3. ZONING APPEALS/REQUESTS FOR VARIANCE  

Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the zoning appeals/variance processes for the Board’s new member. 
 

a. Request for Variance – 331 Selders Circle, Tax Parcel 24-09A-304     
Ms. Schoch reviewed the request to extend the sitting/dining room area.  The property is located in 
the R-1 Zoning District. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the request for variance for 331 
Selders Circle.  Mr. Killian seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 

b. Request for Variance – 211 West North Hills Place, Tax Parcel 24-12-026     
Ms. Schoch reviewed the history and the request to change the use of office space and keep existing 
parking at 6 stalls.  Parking requirement history was reviewed and per the regulations if use is 
changed, parking requirements change back to 11 stalls that had been changed to 6 off-street stalls 
in 1991.  The property is located in the General Commercial Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Killian moved that the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the request for variance for 211 
West North Hills Place.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.   
 
Clarification was made on the professional use change from Real Estate Appraisal Brokerage to 
Financial Analyst and Advisor.  Noted was a suggestion to make these two use categories the same 
in the SALDO due to similarity if doing revisions.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 

c. Request for Variance – 200 Jackson Trail, 24-007-500-0003      
Ms. Schoch reviewed the request to remove the existing Telecommunications Tower and replace 
with a “nearly identical” facility.  The request is to construct a lattice tower in lieu of a monopole tower 
and relief from setbacks from the property line to the south.  The property is located in the 
Forest/Gameland Zoning District. 
  
Mr. Buckland moved that the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the request for variance for 
200 Jackson Trail.  Mr. Miller seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 

 
4. TRAFFIC CALMING REQUEST – WEST AARON DRIVE 

Mr. Modricker reviewed the request and the petition. 
 
Discussion followed on the policy and concerns about pedestrian safety. Sidewalks were discussed as 
part of the study as an alternative.   
 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, June 17, 2019 
Page 4 

Mr. Buckland moved that the Board of Supervisors forward the request for a traffic calming study on 
West Aaron Drive to the Public Works Director for action.  Ms. Dininni seconded the motion.  
 
In response to the topic of pedestrian safety and sidewalks, a Board member noted comments from 
previous experience with residents’ concerns for no sidewalks, streetlights or bypasses in their area.   
 
The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Mr. Buckland moved that the Board of Supervisors forward the request for a sidewalk study on West 
Aaron Drive to the Public Works Director for action.  Mr. Modricker clarified the process and 
recommendations to the Board.  Mr. Buckland withdrew the motion. 
 
Mr. Pribulka discussed how past practices can apply to this project. 
 

5. TRAFFIC CALMING REQUEST – HAWKNEST ROAD 

Mr. Modricker reviewed the request, petition and eligibility for traffic calming for speed control.  The policy 
was included with the agenda.  Chief Albright noted that one school bus violation was reported in the 
area in the last year and a half.  Data was reviewed from the radar sign that noted one vehicle traveling 
over 30 MPH in the area.   
 
Mr. Killian moved that the Board of Supervisors forward the request for a traffic calming study on 
Hawknest Road to the Public Works Director for action.  Mr. Miller seconded the motion.  Discussion 
followed on clocked speed and data collection efforts.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

6. AUTHORIZATION FOR AUTOMATED RED LIGHT ENFORCEMENT GRANT APPLICATION TO 
UPGRADE CERTAIN TRAFFIC SIGNALS WITH DIGITAL RADAR DETECTION TECHNOLOGY 
 

Mr. Pribulka introduced the item as provided with the agenda.  Noted, new guidelines do not require a 
local match; however, Mr. Pribulka recommended local match to increase the probability of securing the 
grant. 
 
Mr. Buckland moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the submission of an Automated Red Light 
Enforcement Grant application to upgrade the traffic signals at the intersections of Blue Course Drive and 
Martin Street; Blue Course Drive and Old Gatesburg Road; and Science Park Road and Circleville Road.  
Mr. Killian seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Seybert clarified the upgrades are needed due to some newer intersections that still rely on video 
detection that give false calls and the need for upgraded communication technology for reliability and 
safety for traffic and bicycle detection.  Noted, was that the upgrades are half way through completion 
either by the Green Light-Go Program or by PA Department of Transportation for the North Atherton 
Street Drainage Project. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

7. COG / REGIONAL COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

Mr. Miller introduced the appointments for nominations as provided with the agenda.  Mr. Miller noted he 
would be willing to accept an appointment to the Centre Area Cable Consortium, unless there were other 
nominations.  The floor opened for nominations for the Cable Consortium, COG Human Resources 
Committee, COG Transportation and Land Use Committee, and MPO Coordinating Committee. 
 
Mr. Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors appoint Steve Miller to the Centre Area Cable 
Consortium.  Mr. Buckland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, June 17, 2019 
Page 5 

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors appoint Richard Killian to the COG Human Resources 
Committee.  Mr. Buckland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors appoint Lisa Strickland to the COG Transportation and 
Land Use Committee.  Mr. Buckland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors appoint Lisa Strickland to the MPO Coordinating 
Committee.  Mr. Buckland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
No other motions were made. 
 
Mr. Pribulka noted that Ron Seybert is the Township’s representative on the MPO Technical Committee 
for any questions Ms. Strickland may have for the MPO committees. 

 
8. APPOINTMENT OF FERGUSON TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE ON THE RECRUITMENT 

SCREENING COMMITTEE FOR THE NEW EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE CENTRE REGION 
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the item that requests a representative to serve on the COG Executive Director 
Recruitment Screening Committee.  The motion was passed at the General Forum on May 28th and the 
deadline to forward appointments to the Executive Committee is June 18th.  The appointment can be an 
elected official or manager from a local municipality and Jim Steff is noted as being a non-voting member.  
Mr. Miller recommended Dave Pribulka. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors appoint Dave Pribulka to serve on the Recruitment 
Screening Committee for the new Executive Director of the Centre Region Council of Governments.  Mr. 
Buckland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
No other motions were made. 
 

VIII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Mr. Buckland announced that this meeting was his last Board meeting and that he will be stepping down 
to spend more time with his family.  He noted appreciation for his time served on the Ferguson Township 
Board of Supervisors for issues that matter and noted accomplishments and good governance.  He noted 
appreciation for the Board and Ferguson staff in their willingness to listen to our citizens and making 
Ferguson Township a great place to live.  Mr. Buckland was thanked for his 3 ½ years of service on the 
Board of Supervisors. 

 
a. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS       

1. Executive Committee.  Mr. Miller noted the agenda was provided in the packet and the committee 
meets tomorrow. 

 
2. Ad Hoc Facilities Committee.  Mr. Endresen attended in Mr. Buckland’s place.  Mr. Buckland 

noted there was discussion of relocation of the Parks office and continued discussion of a facilities 
manual.  Mr. Buckland noted to direct any questions on meeting particulars to Mr. Endresen.   

 
Ms. Dininni discussed the Parks & Recreation Compressive Plan Steering Committee’s interest 
with the relocation of the Parks office due to its involvement with the future direction of that 
agency.  She encouraged inclusion of the Steering Committee with the Facilities Committee on 
this topic. 

 
3. Human Resources Committee.  Mr. Killian reported details on the recommendation to not change 

the meeting etiquette guidelines and a draft is forthcoming at the next Forum meeting.   



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, June 17, 2019 
Page 6 

 
4. Public Services & Environmental Committee.  Mr. Buckland noted the agenda was provided in 

the packet.  Refuse and Recycling bid is forthcoming; and new item was a proposal to form a 
Climate Action Advisory Group to support Pam Adams in her new role as the Sustainability 
Planner and in her purview will be creation of a Climate Action Plan. 

 
5. Public Safety Committee.  Ms. Dininni reported the committee met on June 11th at 12:00 p.m.  

The report included review of program plan code changes; vehicle request; fire protection study 
request; Emergency Management - funding request for part-time deputy coordinator.  The next 
meeting will be on July 9th at 12:15 p.m.  

 
6. Finance Committee.  Mr. Killian reported on library parking issues regarding parking and 

recommendations; and working on new office space lease with move-in date of January 2020.  
 

Ms. Dininni inquired about operational costs and programming operations on the senior center.  
Mr. Killian noted looking at relative costs, savings, and other options.  Further discussion followed 
on a lease with a buy-out option and the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

b. OTHER REGIONAL REPORTS 

1. Spring Creek Watershed Commission.  Mr. Buckland noted there was no meeting this month.  
The next meeting will be in July.  

 
2. Ad Hoc Steering Committee – Parks & Recreation Regional Comp Plan.  Ms. Dininni noted that 

there was a fire safety meeting.   The committee met on June 4th and received a presentation on 
the online survey results and Parks tour; mailed survey results will be complied for the next 
meeting in August; update on Parks committees’ municipalities’ input for future planning at centre 
region.  Ms. Dininni spoke on consistency of results with previous parks surveys; consultant 
presentation on parks’ accessibility with priority on shade and trees among other topics noted. 
 
Ms. Dininni reported that both Chief (Albright) and herself attended the fire safety meeting on 
June 6th at the Alpha Fire Company.  Input was received from elected officials on the scope of the 
study and cost concerns.  Details followed on other considerations, i.e., structural, department’s 
strengths and weaknesses and details on feedback. 

 
             c. STAFF REPORTS           

1. Township Manager.  Mr. Pribulka report was in the packet.  He noted that the Township’s Zoning 
Administrator, Jeff Ressler, had completed recertification on Playground Safety. The Industrial & 
Commercial Development Authority Report is complete with no findings or irregularities. Mr. 
Pribulka spoke about the Township’s sustainability initiatives at the PA Municipal League 
Sustainability Conference held on June 11th in State College.  June 10th was the Township’s Parks 
& Recreation Committee Meeting with noted topics; Discovery Space letter thanking the Township 
for its monetary support over the past three years. A letter was received from Centre Region Parks 
& Recreation on fund raising efforts for LED sports field lighting at the future site of the Whitehall 
Road Regional Park (WRRP).  The Township has received a submittal of the Land Development 
Plan for WRRP that will be reviewed by the Planning Commission and Board, respectively.   
 

2. Interim Planning and Zoning Director.  Ms. Schoch reported the Planning Commission will have 
an initial review of the WRRP Land Development Plan (LDP) at the June 24th meeting.  Orchard 
View LDP is still under review; Sheetz and Harner Farm subdivision plans are with Penn Terra; 
Hummel Subdivision was approved at tonight’s Board meeting; working through the Pine Hall TTD 
agreements and transportation mitigations; the Township’s Public Works Building LDP has been 
conditional approved and working on recording date following the time extension that was 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, June 17, 2019 
Page 7 

approved at tonight’s Board meeting;  pre-application conference for Hillside Farm Estates Master 
Plan and a recent request for a pre-application conference for the Waters group proposed 
development that will be on an upcoming Planning Commission Meeting.  Zoning Hearing Board 
update and advertisement for Planning & Zoning Director position.  Update on a recent SALDO 
worksession, concurrent meetings and processes.  Permit Activity Report was included with the 
agenda packet. 
 

3. Public Works Director.  Mr. Modricker noted the update for the Public Works Maintenance Facility 
(PWMF) and thanked Mr. Buckland for his leadership on the project.  As noted above in the Special 
Reports – Storm Water Fee Study Phase 2 - next SAC meeting is July 17th; Tree Commission 
Meeting update on topics discussed:  PWMF LDP review process, potential tree ordinance; and 
Pine Hall development.  Current activates update on maintenance as provided with the agenda 
packet.   

 
4. Chief of Police.  Chief Albright reported activity for May 2019 and year-to-date.  Part 1 Crimes 

spiked in May due primarily to burglaries; Part 2 Crimes are up a little but overall down for the year; 
overall calls for service are down for the year; drug take back program is picking up with 172 lbs. 
to-date.  Department highlights, active investigations and Community Relations reviewed. 
 
Mr. Buckland thanked the Ferguson Township Police Department for the effective use of Twitter 
and noted a specific tweet.  Chief Albright noted that Diana Griffith posts the information to their 
Twitter page.   

 
IX. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

Ms. Dininni noted an article brought to her attention while attending the Small Area Plan meeting.  This 
was in regards to the identity branding hire in relation to possibly contributing to branding in the 
community. 

 
X. CALENDAR ITEMS 

a. Ferguson Township Administrative offices closed Thursday, July 4th for the holiday 
b. Coffee & Conversation, Naked Egg Café, 8:00 – 9:30 a.m., Friday, July 19th, 320 Pine Grove Rd. 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Miller called for adjournment.  With no further business to come before the before the Board of 
Supervisors, Mr. Killian motioned to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      David Pribulka, Township Manager 
      For the Board of Supervisors 



 

 

Chapter 10 – Health and Safety 

Part 7 – Single Use Plastic Bag Fee for Use 

• Chapter 10, Section 701 – Definitions 

 

- Customer. Any person or persons purchasing goods from a store. 

 

- Proprietor. Any person or persons in control of, or having responsibility for the operation of a store. 

 

- Person. Any natural person, firm, corporation, partnership, or other organization or group however 

organized. 

 

- Single-Use Plastic Bag. Any bag made of plastic that is provided by a store to a customer at the point 

of sale. The definition does not include paper bags or reusable grocery bags. Single-Use Plastic Bags 

shall not include any of the following: 

 

o Recycled bags or bags which are compostable; 

o Bags provided to contain an unwrapped food item; 

o A non-handled bag that is designed to be placed over articles of clothing on a hanger. 

 

- Recyclable Materials. Any materials including, but not limited to aluminum, steel, and bimetal cans; 

green, brown, blue, and clear glass; newsprint and bundles of magazines; unwanted mail; mixed 

office paper; paperboard; all plastic bottles (one through 7); domestic corrugated cardboard; empty 

aerosol and paint cans; and any other materials per § 1501 of State Act 101[2] or added as material 

accepted by the Centre County Solid Waste Authority ("CCSWA") from time to time. 

 

- Reusable Bag. A bag with handles that is specifically designed and manufactured for multiple reuse 

and meets all of the following requirements: 

 

o Has a minimum lifetime of one hundred twenty-five (125) uses, which, for the purposes of 

this Part, is capable of carrying a minimum of twenty-two (22) pounds over a distance of one 

hundred seventy-five (175) feet; 

o For plastic film bags, it must be at least 2.6 millimeters thick and must be comprised of 

recycled content; 

o For sewn bags, fabric weight must be at least eighty (80) grams per square meter (GSM); 

o It must have handles; 

o It must be machine washable or of a material that can be washed; 

o It must possess a tag containing manufacture and recycling information; and 

o It must be made of a non-toxic material. 

 

- Store. Any retail establishment, convenience store, food mart, or dine-in or carry-out restaurant 

conducting business in Ferguson Township. Food trucks as defined in Chapter 27, Section 1202 are 

also included in this definition. 

 

• Chapter 10, Section 702 – Single-Use Plastic Bag Fee for Use 

 



 

 

- § 10-702(1) – Any Store that provides Customer(s) with a Single-Use Plastic Bag, as defined by this 

Part, shall charge the customer ten cents ($0.10) for each bag provided. 

 

- § 10-702(2) – No Store shall be permitted to rebate or otherwise reimburse a Customer for any 

portion of the ten cent ($0.10) charge required by § 10-702(1). 

 

- § 10-702(3) – All Stores must indicate on the customer receipt the number of Single-Use Plastic Bags 

provided and the total amount charged to the Customer for such bags. 

 

- § 10-702(4) – All charges collected by a Store as provided for in this Part shall be retained by the 

Store and used for one of the following purposes: 

 

o To offset costs associated with complying with the requirements of this Part; 

o To offset the actual costs of providing Reusable Bags to Customers; 

o To offset the costs associated with providing educational materials encouraging the use of 

Reusable Bags. Providing these materials will be optional for Stores and shall not be 

required by this Part. 

 

• Chapter 10, Section 703 – Use of Reusable Bags 

 

- § 10-703(1) – All Stores which elect to provide Reusable Bags to Customers may do so at a cost or at 

no charge pending a minimum purchase defined by each Store. 

 

- § 10-703(2) – Stores shall be encouraged to educate staff and Customers about the benefits of 

Reusable Bags and to post internal signage and other information materials to encourage Customers 

to use Reusable Bags and Recyclable Materials. 

 

• Chapter 10, Section 704 – Exemptions 

 

- § 10-704(1) – The Board of Supervisors may, upon written request of a Store, exempt a Store from 

the requirements of this Part for a period of one (1) year from the effective date of the approval of 

the exemption. An exemption may be provided should the Board of Supervisors determine that 

literal enforcement of this Part will cause an undue hardship on the Store. An undue hardship shall 

be found only in the following circumstances, and the Board of Supervisors may attach reasonable 

conditions to any exemption granted: 

 

o The Store has a unique circumstance or situation such that there are no reasonable 

alternatives to Single-Use Plastic Bags; 

o Compliance with the requirements of this Part would deprive a Store of a legally-protected 

right; or 

o Additional time is necessary in order to draw down on a Store’s existing inventory of Single-

Use Plastic Bags. 

 

• Chapter 10, Section 705 – Administration and Enforcement 

 

- § 10-705(1) – Enforcement of the provisions of this Part may be conducted by the Ferguson 

Township Ordinance Enforcement Officer or Zoning Administrator. Either shall be authorized to 



 

 

investigate Stores for compliance with this Part and, if necessary issue citations and pursue all 

necessary and appropriate action to obtain compliance. 

 

- § 10-705(2) – Stores found to be in violation of this Part shall be given thirty (30) days to voluntarily 

comply. Notice of violations of this Part shall be delivered by Certified Mail to the Proprietor of the 

Store. Stores which remain in violation at the conclusion of the thirty (30) day voluntary compliance 

period shall be subject to a fine of one hundred dollars ($100) per day until compliance is achieved. 

A Store which has been found in violation and subsequently complied shall not have another 

voluntary compliance period for future violations and shall immediately be subject to the monetary 

penalty specified herein. 

 

- § 10-705(3) – This Ordinance shall take effect one hundred eighty (180) days from the date of its 

passage. 

 











































































 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 

 
Subject: 
Parental Leave of Absence 

 
Date of Adoption: 

XXXXX 2019 

 
Section 

 
Page No. 

 
Employees Affected: 

Non-Uniform Employees 

 
Date of Revision: 

 

 
15.0 

 

 
15- 

 
 
 

 

PARENTAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
 

1. Full-time employees who are not subject to the provisions of a collective bargaining unit, 
who have worked for the Township for at least 12 months, and who have worked at least 
1,250 hours during the last 12 months prior to taking leave under this Leave of Absence 
Policy for the birth, adoption or foster care placement of a child will be granted up to a 
maximum of six (6) weeks of paid parental leave to be taken in not less than one week 
increments within 6 months of the birth, adoption or foster care placement of a child.  This 
paid leave will not reduce or expand the total amount of leave time available to employees 
under other Leave of Absence provisions in this personnel manual and will not include paid 
holidays. Paid parental leave is available for two occurrences per year per employee. 
 

2. For the birth, adoption or foster care of a child, the employee is required to make a 
reasonable effort to schedule the time off in order to minimize disruption to Ferguson 
Township’s operation.  The township and the employee must mutually agree to the schedule 
before the employee may take leave.  Leave for birth, adoption or foster care of a child must 
be taken within six (6) months of the birth or placement of the child. 
 

3. Employees who have made application for a leave of absence or who are on a leave of 
absence for the birth, adoption or foster care placement of a child upon the effective date of 
these parental leave provisions, may be eligible for up to a maximum of six (6) weeks of 
paid parental leave based on their FMLA time remaining in accordance with this policy. 
 

4. An employee is only permitted one six (6) week paid parental leave of absence per child. 
 

5. Paid parental leave will run concurrent with FMLA. This paid parental leave will not be 
deducted from employee paid time off (sick, vacation or personal time) accrual balance. 
 

6. If a married or unmarried couple work for the township and each wishes to take leave for the 
birth of a child, adoption or placement of a child in foster care, they are able to take up to a 
combined total of twelve (12) weeks of leave, six (6) weeks of which may be paid under the 
provisions for Parental Leave of Absence. 



 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 

 
Subject: 

Remote Work  

 
Date of Adoption: 

 2019 

 
Section 

 

 
Page No. 

 
Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 

 
Date of Revision: 

 

 
X.0 

 

 
X-1 

 
 
 
 

Remote Work Policy and Procedure  
 
Objective 
Remote Work is not a formal, universal benefit and Ferguson Township has the right to refuse to 
make Remote Work available to an employee and to terminate a Remote Work arrangement at any 
time. Ferguson Township allows employees to work at home, on the road or in a satellite location for 
part of their workweek. Ferguson Township considers Remote Work to be a viable, flexible work 
option when both the employee and the job are suited to such an arrangement. Remote Work may be 
appropriate for some employees and jobs but not for others. Remote Work is not an entitlement, it is 
not a companywide benefit, and it in no way changes the terms and conditions of employment with 
Ferguson Township.  
 
Procedures 
Remote Work can be informal, such as working from home for a short-term project or one day a week 
or it can be a formal, set schedule of working away from the office as described below. Either an 
employee or a supervisor can suggest Remote Work as a possible work arrangement. 
 
Any Remote Work arrangement made will be on a trial basis for the first three months and may be 
discontinued at will and at any time at the request of either the employee or the organization. Every 
effort will be made to provide 30 days’ notice of such change to accommodate commuting, child care 
and other issues that may arise from the termination of a Remote Work arrangement. There may be 
instances, however, when no notice is possible. 
 
An employee who wants to remote work must first discuss the request with his/her supervisor. The 
Township Manager and/or the Human Resource Administrator will then make the final decision 
regarding whether the employee is permitted to begin the remote work trial period of a minimum of 
twelve (12) weeks. If remote work is permitted, a Remote Work Agreement will be completed, which 
will define the hours of work, work expectations, and parameters with respect to logistics such as 
workspace, equipment, etc.  
 
Eligibility 
Individuals requesting formal Remote Work arrangements must be employed with Ferguson 
Township for a minimum of 12 months of continuous, regular employment and must have a 
satisfactory performance record.  Certain positions and individuals may not be suitable for remote 
work. The following parameters apply: 
 

1. The employee must have a portion of their workload that can be performed away from the 
office without diminishing the quality of work and service to Ferguson Township. 

2. Remote work may be limited to a specified number of days per week, and the remote work 
day(s) must be determined in advance. 



 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 

 
Subject: 

Remote Work  

 
Date of Adoption: 

 2019 

 
Section 

 

 
Page No. 

 
Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 

 
Date of Revision: 

 

 
X.0 

 

 
X-1 

 
 
 
 

3. The employee must have the ability to make arrangements with co-workers and supervisor for 
coverage of on-site job demands that arise on the remote work day(s). For supervisors, they 
must be present in the office a sufficient amount of time to ensure their reports are completing 
their tasks and not requiring additional assistance. 

4. Remote work must not create problems for participants, projects, or staff. 
5. If the employee is required to report to a worksite in-person on a day normally scheduled for 

remote work, the employee agrees to report to the work site in-person.    
6. An employee approved for remote work will be subject to a trial period for a minimum period of 

twelve (12) weeks. During the trial period, the township manager and/or supervisor will assess 
the suitability of the position for remote work and the employee’s performance while 
performing work remotely.  

7. The employee will continue to follow the same high standards with respect to professionalism 
and work product as currently met by Ferguson Township employees at their onsite work 
locations. While remote working, the employee must be reachable by telephone and email 
during their normal work hours, as if the employee was in the office. The employee’s duties, 
obligations and responsibilities remain unchanged during remote work.  

 
Before entering into any Remote Work agreement, the employee and supervisor, with the assistance 
of the Township Manager and/or Human Resource Administrator, will evaluate the suitability of such 
an arrangement, reviewing the following areas: 
 

 Employee suitability - assess the needs and work habits of the employee, compared to traits 
customarily recognized as appropriate for successful remote work employees. 

 Job responsibilities - discuss the job responsibilities and determine if the job is appropriate for 
a Remote Work arrangement. 

 Equipment needs, workspace design considerations and scheduling issues - review the 
physical workspace needs for the remote work.  

 Tax and other legal implications. The employee must determine any tax or legal implications 
under IRS, state and local government laws, and/or restrictions of working out of a 
home-based office. Responsibility for fulfilling all obligations in this area rests solely with the 
employee. 

If the employee and supervisor agree, and the Township Manager and/or the Human Resource 
Administrator concurs, a draft Remote Work Agreement will be prepared and signed by all parties, 
and a three-month trial period will commence. 
 
Evaluation of remote work performance during the trial period may include regular interaction by 
phone and e-mail between the employee and the supervisor, and weekly face-to-face meetings to 
discuss work progress and problems. At the end of the trial period, the employee and supervisor will 
each complete an evaluation of the arrangement and make recommendations for continuance or 
modifications. Evaluation of remote work performance beyond the trial period will be consistent with 



 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 

 
Subject: 

Remote Work  

 
Date of Adoption: 

 2019 

 
Section 

 

 
Page No. 

 
Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 

 
Date of Revision: 

 

 
X.0 

 

 
X-1 

 
 
 
 

that received by employees working at the office in both content and frequency but will focus on work 
output and completion of objectives rather than on time-based performance. 
 
An appropriate level of communication between the employee and supervisor will be agreed to as 
part of the discussion process and will be more formal during the trial period. After conclusion of the 
trial period, the supervisor and employee will communicate at a level consistent with employees 
working at the office or in a manner and frequency that is appropriate for the job and the individuals 
involved. 
 
Equipment   
On a case-by-case basis, Ferguson Township will determine, with information supplied by the 
employee and the supervisor, the appropriate equipment needs (including hardware, software, 
modems, phone and data lines and other office equipment) for each Remote Work arrangement. The 
human resource and information system departments will serve as resources in this matter. 
Equipment supplied by the organization will be maintained by the organization. Equipment supplied 
by the employee, if deemed appropriate by the organization, will be maintained by the employee. 
Ferguson Township accepts no responsibility for damage or repairs to employee-owned equipment. 
Ferguson Township reserves the right to make determinations as to appropriate equipment, subject 
to change at any time. Equipment supplied by the organization is to be used for business purposes 
only. The employee must agree to take appropriate action to protect the items from damage or theft. 
Upon termination of employment, all company property will be returned to the company, unless other 
arrangements have been made. 
 
The following conditions shall apply to use of computers, software and other equipment: 

 The employee will provide his/her own Internet access.  The use of Ferguson Township 
communications and software by remote work employees is subject to Ferguson Township 
policies on Electronic Communications as described in the Personnel Manual. 

 The employee agrees not to duplicate Ferguson Township owned software.  The employee 
also agrees to abide by the licensing regulations for all software under license to Ferguson 
Township. 

 A computer used for Ferguson Township business must be plugged into a surge protector and 
have current virus protection maintained. 

 Restricted-access materials shall not be removed from the Ferguson Township on-site work 
location or accessed through the computer unless approved in advance by the manager and 
the appropriate security access administrator. 

 
Ferguson Township will supply the employee with appropriate office supplies (pens, paper, etc.) as 
deemed necessary. Ferguson Township will also reimburse the employee for business-related 
expenses, such as phone calls and shipping costs that are reasonably incurred in carrying out the 
employee’s job. 



 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 

 
Subject: 

Remote Work  

 
Date of Adoption: 

 2019 

 
Section 

 

 
Page No. 

 
Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 

 
Date of Revision: 

 

 
X.0 

 

 
X-1 

 
 
 
 

 
The employee will establish an appropriate work environment within his or her home for work 
purposes. Ferguson Township will not be responsible for costs associated with the setup of the 
employee’s home office, such as remodeling, furniture or lighting, nor for repairs or modifications to 
the home office space.  
 
Security 
Consistent with the organization’s expectations of information security for employees working at the 
office, Remote Work employees will be expected to ensure the protection of proprietary company and 
customer information accessible from their home office. Steps include the use of locked file cabinets 
and desks, regular password maintenance, and any other measures appropriate for the job and the 
environment. 
 
The employee will protect Ferguson Township information from unauthorized disclosure or damage 
and will comply with federal and state law, and Ferguson Township rules, policies and procedures 
regarding disclosure of public and official records. Work done at the employee’s remote work site is 
regarded as official Ferguson Township business. All records, documents and correspondence, in 
paper or electronic form must be safeguarded and returned to Ferguson Township. Release or 
destruction of records should be done only in accordance with statute and Ferguson Township policy 
and procedure, and with the knowledge of the employee’s supervisor. Electronic/computer files are 
considered Ferguson Township records and shall be protected as such. 
 
Safety 
Employees are expected to maintain their home workspace in a safe manner, free from safety 
hazards. Ferguson Township will provide each remote work employee with a safety checklist that 
must be completed at least once per year. Injuries sustained by the employee in a home office 
location and in conjunction with his or her regular work duties are normally covered by the company’s 
workers’ compensation policy. Remote Work employees are responsible for notifying the employer of 
such injuries as soon as practicable. The employee is liable for any injuries sustained by visitors to his 
or her home worksite. 
 
Remote Work is not designed to be a replacement for appropriate child care. Although an individual 
employee’s schedule may be modified to accommodate child care needs, the focus of the 
arrangement must remain on job performance and meeting business demands. Prospective remote 
work employees are encouraged to discuss expectations of remote work with family members prior to 
entering a trial period. 
 
Time Worked 
The employee’s compensation, benefits, work status and work responsibilities will not change due to 
remote work.  



 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 

 
Subject: 

Remote Work  

 
Date of Adoption: 

 2019 

 
Section 

 

 
Page No. 

 
Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 

 
Date of Revision: 

 

 
X.0 

 

 
X-1 

 
 
 
 

Travel from the employee’s home and to the employee’s assigned Ferguson Township work location 
is considered commuting mileage and will not be reimbursed. 
 
Remote Work employees who are not exempt from the overtime requirements of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act will be required to accurately record all hours worked using Ferguson Township’s 
time-keeping system. Hours worked in excess of those scheduled per day and per workweek require 
the advance approval of the employee’s supervisor. Failure to comply with this requirement may 
result in the immediate termination of the Remote Work agreement and/or other disciplinary action. 
 
Ad Hoc Arrangements 
Temporary Remote Work arrangements may be approved for circumstances on a daily basis. Such 
examples may inclement weather, special projects or business travel. These arrangements are 
approved on an as-needed basis only, with no expectation of ongoing continuance.  
 
Other informal, short-term arrangements may be made for employees on family or medical leave to 
the extent practical for the employee and the organization and with the consent of the employee’s 
health care provider, if appropriate. All informal Remote Work arrangements are made on a 
case-by-case basis, focusing first on the business needs of the organization. 





CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3

State College, PA 16801
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3083 Website: www.crcog.net

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
COG Building Forum Room

2643 Gateway Drive
June 18, 2019

12:15 PM

AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Steve Miller will convene the meeting.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda (five 
minutes per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the agenda should 
be deferred until that point in the meeting.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A copy of the minutes of the May 21, 2019, Executive Committee meeting is enclosed.

4. FORMATION OF A CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTION TECHNICAL ADVISORY 
GROUP

This action agenda item asks the Executive Committee to refer a recommendation from the 
Public Services and Environmental Committee that a volunteer Technical Advisory Group be 
formed to provide additional expertise and analysis of technical issues that may be required to 
inform the preparation and implementation of the Centre Region Climate Action and Adaption 
Plan.

The purpose of the Ad Hoc Climate Action and Adaptation Technical Advisory Group would be 
to convene individuals who can assist the Sustainability Planner and Public Services and 
Environmental Committee by providing expertise in a range of topic areas. The members of the 
Technical Advisory Group are anticipated to be professional scientists, engineers, planners, 
architects, and others with subject matter expertise. The Group should also include one or two 
citizens to provide perspectives from members of the community. Meetings of the Group will be 
open to the public and noticed on the COG web page and through social media. Members will 
be requested to participate in the Group by the Sustainability Planner and CRPA Director, and 
the final Group will be endorsed by the COG Public Services and Environmental Committee.

A general list of areas where expertise may be needed includes but is not limited to: energy 
consumption; energy production; water resources management; waste management; 



Executive Committee Agenda
June 18, 2019
Page 2 of 8

transportation; land use and community design; building and facility design; open space, 
recreation, and tourism; agriculture; forestry; human health; policy barriers and synergies; 
funding possibilities; and educational and outreach programming.

The CRPA recommends forming an Ad Hoc Climate Action and Adaption Technical Advisory 
Group that could meet on a regular basis for 12 to 15 meetings over the next 18 to 24 months. 
This group would advise the Sustainability Planner and the Public Services and Environmental 
Committee during the preparation of the Climate Action and Adaption Plan. 

To proceed the Public Services and Environmental Committee unanimously agreed to refer the 
following motion to the General Forum for approval:

of a 

5. REFUSE & RECYCLING 2020 CONTRACT – RFB AWARD

This is an action item that asks the Executive Committee to refer a recommendation from the 
Public Services Committee that the base bid for residential Refuse collection be awarded to 
Advance Disposal for the 2020-2024 contract period.

The current COG/Advanced Disposal contract for residential refuse and recycling services 
expires December 31, 2019. The contract covers nearly 16,000 properties in Benner, College, 
Ferguson, Harris, and Patton Townships. The Public Services and Environmental Committee has 
worked on preparing the Request for Bid (RFB) for the 2020-2024 contract since June 2018. The 
RFB asked for refuse operating cost for (1) a base bid, which includes Standard 8-bag and Low
Usage 1-bag service; and (2) an alternate bid, which is for a cart collection program. 

On March 13, 2019, one bid from Advance Disposal was received for the regional refuse and 
recycling contract. Bid documents were issued to eight companies and three participated in the 
pre-bid conference: Apple Valley Waste, Burgmeier’s Hauling, and Advanced Disposal. 

The bid package has been reviewed by the COG’s legal counsel for the contract. It has also been 
individually discussed with each of the five governing boards/councils involved in the service.  
Advanced Disposal submitted a complete responsible bid. Enclosed is a Bid Evaluation Report 
which summarizes the bid received and the bidding process. Advanced Disposal’s refuse and 
recycling rate submitted for the base bid for regular service for 5 years is $19.53, which is 21% 
more than the current 2019 rate ($16.12). Half of this price increase is from refuse costs and half 
is from recycling costs. The cart alternative rates are roughly $2 - $2.50 higher per month.

The Committee carefully discussed the alternative bid which would require customers to use 
carts. The Committee did not recommend this alternative because it would increase costs to the 
customer and be inconvenient to many households. Carts were more compelling when an 
organics collection program was being discussed. Unfortunately, the proposed curbside organics



Executive Committee Agenda
June 18, 2019
Page 3 of 8

service would have increased the monthly collection cost by $8.00 and created a larger carbon 
footprint. 

To proceed the Public Services and Environmental Committee (4 years, 2 abstentions from the 
municipalities not participating in the contract) agreed to refer the following motion to the 
General Forum for approval:

6. UPDATE ON A PROPOSAL TO LEASE OF OFFICE SPACE FOR THE PARKS AGENCY

This is an information agenda item regarding two ideas that Ad Hoc Facilitates Committee is 
exploring to address office space and parking problems at the COG building. The first 
component is that Centre Region Parks and Recreation’s administrative office be moved to a 
rented commercial property near the COG office. The second component is the Centre Region 
Code Administration Agency assume responsibility for space vacated the Parks and Recreation
Agency. No action from the Executive Committee is required. Comments, concerns, and 
questions from the Committee are welcomed.

Over the past six months, the Facilities Committee has been discussing the space issues at the 
COG Building.  An RFP was issued in February and all bids were subsequently rejected at the 
April meeting.  Also, at the April meeting, the Facilities Committee requested that staff bring a 
plan back to the Committee as to how to proceed.

At the June Facilities Committee meeting, there was a discussion on relocating the Parks office to 
a 3,877 sq. foot suite on Sandy Drive. The property’s broker attended the meeting and answered 
questions from the Committee. A site tour was held and attended by Committee members, the 
COG chair, COG staff, and Borough IT staff. Currently, staff is developing potential lease terms, 
the related moving costs, and the associated capital costs (such as remodeling, furniture, IT 
hardware/software, etc.).

A question was asked as to why an increase from 1,850 to 3,877 sq. feet for the CRPR is 
justified. There are three responses to this question. First, the 1,850 sq. foot space currently used 
by CRPR does not include restrooms, meeting rooms, lunch room, or an IT room. Second, the 
current CRPR office has no space for storage. Equipment and other items are kept in employee 
offices or in multiple offsite locations. Third, currently there is no space available for additional 
staff as may be recommended during the next five years.



Executive Committee Agenda
June 18, 2019
Page 4 of 8

How will the 3,877 sq. ft. be used?

1,850 sq. ft Current office space (no common space is included)
200 2 Bathrooms
100 Office for Recreation Supervisor (camps and special events)
300 Conference Room
900 Central Storage – sounds like a lot but it will fill up quickly
200 Employee lunch room and kitchen
100 IT room
200 Expand reception/seating area

3,850 sq. feet Total

The Committee at its June 4, 2019 meeting identified the additional information it needs and 
questions to be answered so a draft lease agreement can be prepared. At the meeting, it was 
requested that a draft lease be prepared for the July 2, 2019 Facilities Committee meeting and 
that it goes through the approval process with the goal of being approved at the July 22, 2019,
General Forum. The timeline of approval is necessary to ensure a January 1, 2020, due date is 
possible.

The Committee should receive this report and ask any questions it deems pertinent.  

7. PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES

As requested by the Human Resources Committee this agenda item asks the Executive 
Committee to review proposed guidelines for public comment during COG meetings.

During the November 2018 meeting of the General Forum guidelines were adopted concerning 
behavior at public meetings, the role of the committee/board/authority chair, to remind people 
of their responsibility, and to clarify the meeting process. 

At the time it was suggested that the Human Resources (HR) Committee prepare a set of 
guidelines outlining the procedures for providing public comment at COG-related meetings.
Accordingly, the Committee did draft guidelines and referred them to the General Forum for 
review and comment.

During its March 25, 2019 meeting the General Forum discussed the draft guidelines for 
providing public comment at General Forum and other COG-related meetings. Although the 
guidelines were thoroughly discussed by the General Forum they were not adopted. 

Concerns expressed by members of the General Forum include:

The guidelines should be simplified, they may appear to be cumbersome to the residents.
Strengthen the preamble as to encourage public comment.
Look at how Patton Township provides guidelines for public comment.



Executive Committee Agenda
June 18, 2019
Page 5 of 8

Clarify how the distribution of written materials will be handled, particularly if a resident 
wants to hand-out information at the meeting.
Consider whether the guidelines should be in the form of Frequently Asked Questions, 
Guidelines to the General Forum and Committee Chair, or Guidelines for the Residents 
(current format).

Enclosed is a revised draft copy of the public comment handout as proposed by the HR 
Committee. The Executive Committee should review the draft document and decide how to 
proceed. Options include:

a) Referring the guidelines to the General Forum “as is”. Should the Committee approve 
this option then a possible enacting motion is:

b) Proposing changes to the guidelines and referring the revised guidelines to the General 
Forum.

c) Asking the HR Committee to revisit specific sections of the guidelines and prepare a 
revised draft for consideration by the General Forum during its April 22, 2019 meeting. 

To strengthen the intent of the guidelines, the HR Committee is recommending that they are 
adopted by a resolution of the General Forum. A draft copy of Resolution 2019-2 is enclosed.

Also, at their April 3, 2020 meeting, the HR Committee asked the language used in COG 
agendas from Citizen Comment to Public Comment. The COG Executive Director asked the 
staff who are involved in the agenda preparation process to make this change. 

8. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RECRUITMENT AND SCREENING COMMITTEE

This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to clarify the role of Recruitment and Screening 
Committee in the Executive Director selection process.

During its May 28, 2019 meeting the General Forum authorized the formation of a Recruitment 
and Screening Committee for the next COG Executive Director. Each municipality was asked to 
appoint one representative. Thus far, the Committee members are: Adam Brumbaugh (College 
Township), Tom Fountaine (State College Borough), Dave Pribulka (Ferguson Township), and 
Nigel Wilson (Harris Township).

To clarify the role of the Committee in the hiring process, Mr. Miller asks the Executive 
Committee to provide direction on the following question:

a. Is the role of the Recruitment and Screening Committee to propose a single candidate to 
the General Forum for approval? Or



Executive Committee Agenda
June 18, 2019
Page 6 of 8

b. Is the role of the Recruitment and Screening Committee to select multiple applicants for 
the Executive Committee to interview and upon the completion of these interviews the 
Executive Committee would propose a single candidate to the General Forum for 
approval?

9. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Mr. Steff will provide an update of COG activities for June 2019. Enclosed is a draft of the 2020 
Program Plan for the Office of Administration. Committee comments are welcomed. 

10. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Matter of Record – Next month’s meeting of the General Forum is scheduled for
Monday, July 29, 2019, at the COG Building. Tentative agenda items include: 2020 
COG Program Plan and 2020 to 2024 Capital Improvement Plan.

B. Matter of Record – The following is an update of the status of planning and evaluation 
studies currently underway at the COG.

Planning Activity Status
1 Update 

Personnel Policy 
Handbook

This project is complete. 

2 Parks and 
Recreation 
Regional Plan

This project is well underway – a community-wide 
randomized survey was mailed to 3,000 Centre Region 
residents. The results are being compiled and should be 
made available to the Steering Committee at its next 
meeting. Over 750 residents responded to an electronic 
version of the survey. A second public meeting is 
scheduled for Tuesday, September 10 at High School.

3 Study of 
Regional Fire 
Protection 
Program

A Work Group has been formed and held its first 
meeting on June 6th to develop a scope of work for a 
study to identify a future organizational model for the 
regional fire protection program. 

4 IT Study Due to staff limitations, this project will not go forward 
in 2019 but will be carried into 2020. 

5 Code Software 
Study

The Project Management Consultant, Peter Marshall 
Associates, held its first and second meetings of the 
stakeholders (seven municipalities, State College 
Borough IT Department, Code, and Planning agencies 
and Centre County). 



Executive Committee Agenda
June 18, 2019
Page 7 of 8

6 COG Facilities 
Evaluation

The Facilities Volunteer/Intern has begun the process of 
defining the outcomes desired for the facilities 
evaluation.  This project should move forward during the 
second half of 2019.

7 Executive 
Director 
Recruitment and 
Screening 
Committee 

This Committee is being formed. There will be one 
representative from each Centre Region municipality 
plus the Executive Director as a non-voting member.

8 Solar Power 
Purchase 
Agreement 
Working Group

This twelve-member Committee has been formed and 
will hold its first meeting on Wednesday, June 26 at the 
State College Area High School.

C. Matter of Record – During its June 13, 2019 meeting the Finance Committee received a 
report from the Library that a very few people are abusing the free parking at 
Library. Recently, there has been a noticeable increase in people parking at the Library 
and going elsewhere for extended periods or all day. Especially, a few people are abusing 
the current system by parking their vehicles all day at the Library parking lot, going to 
class or conducting other personal business, and then returning to the library to have 
their parking card validated. This type of bad behavior is making it difficult for people 
who are going to the library to find an open parking space. The Library staff recommends 
that Library patrons be limited to two or three hours of free parking instead of all-day 
parking as currently is the case. If patrons utilize more hours, then they would be charged 
a parking fee comparable to Borough parking lot rates. The proposed change would occur 
at the beginning of the Fall 2019 academic year.

D. Matter of Record – During its June 6, 2019 meeting the Public Services and 
Environmental Committee received a request from Ferguson Township that the 
Committee discusses a way to take a regional approach to discourage single-use plastic 
bags.

E. Matter of Record – The CRPC is pleased to announce that Pam Adams has accepted the 
Sustainability Planner position. Pam has worked on several sustainability and 
environmental issues during her entire career. She is joining the CRPA after 11 years 
administering the Refuse and Recycling Program in the Centre Region. Pam’s first day of 
work for the CRPA was June 3, 2019. Darlene Chivers, the Refuse and Recycling 
Assistant, was appointed the acting administrator. A job posting for the Administrator’s 
position will be advertised during June. 

11. TENTATIVE AGENDA ITEMS

The following are agenda items tentatively scheduled for discussion at the Monday, June 24,
2019, General Forum meeting, which will be held in the Centre Region COG Building. 



Executive Committee Agenda
June 18, 2019
Page 8 of 8

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Appointment of Technical Committee
C. Refuse/Recycling Contract
D. Public Comment Guidelines

12. ADJOURNMENT



Please Note the Location:  
Patton Township Municipal Building 

Next Coordinating Committee meeting: 
Tuesday, September 24, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 
Patton Township Municipal Building 



Changes and Milestones 









 

  
 

Manager’s Report 
July 1, 2019 

 
1. Provided with my report is a letter from Ted Onufrak, Executive Director of the Centre 

County Refuse and Recycling Authority, to state legislators encouraging them to oppose 
any transfer of money from the Recycling Fund in the state budget to help support other 
initiatives. 
 

2. Also attached to my report is a letter of appreciation from the President of the Community 
Diversity Group for the Township’s contribution of $500 to sponsor the Community 
Diversity Conference held on June 11, 2019. 
 

3. The Larson Design Group completed a 2019 Routine Bridge Safety Inspection Report for 
PennDOT District 2 and Ferguson Township for the two bridges located in the Township. 
The first, located at the intersection of Deibler Road and State Route 45, was rated in 
overall fair physical condition. The second, located on Gatesburg Road over Halfmoon 
Creek was rated in satisfactory overall physical condition. The full reports are available at 
the Township building for inspection. 
 

4. Provided with my report is a letter from the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental 
Protection to the University Area Joint Authority (UAJA) approving a Plan of Study and 
Task Activity Report (“TAR”) for the Scott Road Pump Station and Bristol Road 
Interceptor. As part of the TAR, UAJA must present alternatives to the upgrade of the 
Pump Station. One of the alternatives presented, constructing a gravity line to bypass the 
Pump Station, has been opposed by the Centre Region Planning Agency due to 
inconsistency with the Centre Region Comprehensive Plan. Specifically, because the 
proposed gravity line would run outside of the Regional Growth Boundary/Sewer Service 
Area. A letter from Jim May, CRPA Director, requesting that UAJA eliminate this 
alternative from consideration is also provided with my report. 
 

5. Staff is nearing completion of a DRAFT 2020 – 2020 Capital Improvement Program 
Budget. The draft document is on schedule to be distributed to the Board of Supervisors 
the week of July 8th. Board members are reminded that we have a CIP Road Tour 
scheduled for Friday, July 12th. The tour will begin at 9:30 a.m. at the Township building 
and staff will attempt to view all of the road projects in the scope of the CIP, but will focus 
on the years 2020 and 2021.  











Serving the Townships of College, Ferguson, Halfmoon, Harris, Patton and the Borough of State College 
A Bicycle Friendly Community 

 

Centre Regional Planning Agency 
 

2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #4  State College, PA 16801  Phone (814) 231-3050  www.crcog.net 

 

June 26, 2019 

 

Mr. Cory Miller 

Executive Director 

University Area Joint Authority 

1576 Spring Valley Road 

State College, PA 16801 

 

RE:  SCOTT ROAD PUMP STATION AND BRISTOL INTERCEPTOR TASK 

ACTIVITY REPORT– ALTERNATIVE 1.C 

 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

 

The Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (PADEP) recently approved a Task 

Activity Report (TAR) for an Act 537 Plan Special Study for the Scott Road Pump Station and 

Bristol Interceptor. The Scott Road Pump Station serves the Pine Grove Mills area in Ferguson 

Township and based upon information in the TAR, the pump station experiences elevated peak 

flows from inflow and infiltration. The UAJA anticipates that overload conditions will continue 

and that increasing the capacity of the pump station could also potentially cause hydraulic 

overload conditions in the downstream sewer system, specifically the Bristol Interceptor. This 

Special Study would identify several alternatives to safely handle existing and future wastewater 

flows from the Pine Grove Mills area.  

   

Alternative 1.c in the in the Scott Road Pump Station and Bristol Interceptor Task Activity 

Report would “Construct a gravity conveyance system and eliminate the pump station”. The 

location of the gravity conveyance system is not identified in the TAR. The UAJA however, has 

often cited a potential alignment for a sewer line that would parallel Slab Cabin Run from 

approximately College Avenue to Atherton Street. At the kickoff meeting for the project on June 

25, 2019, the CRPA requested that the UAJA not consider a gravity conveyance system in the 

TAR. 

 

The Centre Region Comprehensive Plan identifies a number of land use, environmental, public 

services, and sustainability goals, objectives, and policies that guide development in the Centre 

Region. The Comprehensive Plan also identifies the land use in most of the area between 

University Drive, State Route 45, College Avenue, and Atherton Street as “Agriculture”. This 

area also contains many large tracts that are preserved in perpetuity from development, contains 

highly productive State College Borough Water Authority drinking water wells, and is not 

expected to see development to the extent that would ever warrant public sewer.  

 

 

 

 

http://www.crcog.net/


Mr. Cory Miller 

 Scott Road Pump Station and Bristol Interceptor 

June 26, 2019 

Page 2 of 2 

 

For these reasons, the CRPA has determined that a gravity conveyance system is not consistent 

with the Centre Region Comprehensive Plan and is not a viable alternative to convey sewage 

from the Pine Grove Mills area to the UAJA plant. 

 

The CRPA respectfully requests that this letter be considered as a “cause for rejection” of 

alternative 1.c in the TAR and that that the UAJA and it’s consultants not study Alternative 1.c 

in the TAR. 

  

Please call or e-mail if you have additional questions or if you require additional information. 

 

Sincerely 

 

 

Jim May, AICP 

Director 

 
Cc: Jim Steff, COG Executive Director 

 David Pribulka, Manager, Ferguson Township 

Mark Boeckel, AICP, CRPA Principal Planner 

COG Public Services and Environmental Committee 

Centre Regional Planning Commission 

 Brian Heiser, SCBWA Executive Director 

 Kevin Abbey, Land Conservation Manager, ClearWater Conservancy 

Ben Burns, Water/Wastewater Team Leader, HRG Engineering 



  

  

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON  
3147 Research Drive, State College, Pennsylvania 16801 

Telephone: 814‐238‐4651 Fax: 814‐238‐3454  
  

  

    

TO:                      Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors   

FROM:              Lindsay K. Schoch, Interim Planning and Zoning Director  

  

DATE:                June 26, 2019  

  

SUBJECT:          Active Development Projects & Interim Planning and Zoning Department Update   

  

In an effort  to keep  the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors up‐to‐date on pending 

proposals  and  applications,  staff  is  providing  a  list  of  Active  Plans  and  other  Projects  in  the 

Township.  

  

Currently, the Township has five (5) Active Plans and two (2) conditionally approved plan.   

  

1. Whitehall Road Regional Park Phase 1: Stahl Sheaffer Engineering submitted the final land 

development plan  for  the proposed Whitehall Road Regional Park Phase  1 on behalf of 

Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority. This is located off the future Blue Course 

Drive extension, south of the  intersection of Blue Course Drive and Whitehall Road. The 

proposed Phase 1 development involves the development of approximately 55 acres of the 

100 acre park property. The property will  include:  two  lighted grass  fields  (alternate  to 

synthetic turf), two unlighted grass fields, two grass practice/open space areas, accessible 

walking  trail, All‐Ability   and Universally‐Accessible Playground, All‐Season Pavilion with 

attached  concession  stand  and  restrooms,  and  a    three‐bay  park  operations  storage 

building. The required park infrastructure includes a paved entrance road, paved parking 

lots (just under 500 spaces), accessible connector sidewalks and trails, public water and 

sanitary  sewer  service,  and  natural  gas  service.  There  will  be  green  stormwater 

management facilities such as bioswales, stormwater infiltration basins, and rain gardens, 

all of which  connect  to  the  storm water  system. A  solar  installation on  the All‐Season 

Pavilion will  support  the building’s energy needs,  and  there  is  a proposed  landscaping 

buffer system to include trees, shrubs, and native grasses. Plan Expiration is September 9, 

2019 and staff are currently reviewing the Plans with comments due back by June 25.  

 

2. Orchard View Land Development Plan:   This  land development plan, submitted by Penn 

Terra Engineering on behalf of the applicants, Aspen Whitehall Partners, LLC proposed a  

36 lot subdivision on tax parcel yet to be determined by the approval of the Subdivision & 

Replot Plan for the Harner Farm (Tax Parcel 24‐4‐67/C). The  land  is  located  in the single‐

family residential zoning district with corridor overlay. The Plans were submitted to staff 

on Tuesday, May 14 and will be sent to reviewers.  Plan Expiration is Tuesday, August 16, 

2019. Plan Review Comments sent to Penn Terra for their review and consideration.  

  



3. Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan – State College, PA (Whitehall Road) Sheetz: Penn 
Terra Engineering, Inc. on behalf of the applicant, Aspen Whitehall Partners LLC submitted a  
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan  for the State College, PA (Whitehall Road) Sheetz. 
Prior to the submission of this land development plan, a pre‐application conference was held 
with  the Ferguson Township Planning Commission as per  the optional section 22.302 of  the 
Ferguson Township Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance. The overall concept plan for 
Harner Farm was discussed at the pre‐application conference, including the proposed Sheetz 
Convenience Store and  the subdivision of  land as part of  the project. The proposed Sheetz 
Convenience store will be developed on 5.7 acres at the southwest corner of Whitehall Road 
and West College Avenue. The building will be 6,077 square feet, the site will also have a car 
wash,  stormwater management basins and  required access points.   A Traffic  Impact Study, 
Stormwater Management Plan and Lighting Plan have been submitted for review.  
Construction is scheduled to begin in the fall of 2019 and last a year to eighteen months. Prior 
to the proposed development, the land was actively farmed for the past fifty years. A plan to 
subdivide  tax  parcel  24‐4‐67  and  replot  of  tax  parcel  24‐4‐67C  is  also  being  considered 
concurrently  with  the  review  of  the  land  development  plan.  The  Plan  is  currently  being 
reviewed by staff and other  required agencies with comments due back  to  the Community 
Planner on May 8, 2019. Plan Expiration is July 18, 2019.  Plan Comments sent to Penn Terra. Staff 
waiting for response.     

  

4. Harner Farm Subdivision Plan – Subdivision of Tax Parcel 24‐4‐67 and Replot of Tax Parcel 244‐
67C: Penn Terra Engineering,  Inc. on behalf of  the applicant, Aspen Whitehall Partners LLC 
submitted a Plan for the subdivision of tax parcel 24‐4‐67 and replot of tax parcel 24‐4‐67C.  The 
purpose of this plan is to subdivide Tax Parcel 24‐4‐67 into four (4) lots, replot Tax Parcel 24‐
467C  and  dedicate  land  from  Tax  Parcel  24‐4‐67  to  Ferguson  Township  Right  of Way.    In 
conjunction with this Subdivision/Replot Plan is a Land Development Plan for the State College,  
PA Whitehall Road Sheetz. The Plan  is currently being reviewed by staff and other required 
agencies with comments due back to the Community Planner on May 8, 2019. Plan Expiration 
is July 18, 2019.  Plan Comments sent to Penn Terra. Staff waiting for response.      

  

5. Pine Hall Traditional Town Development General Master Plan: Staff is currently working 

with the developer and have come up with the following schedule: July 22, staff will ask 

the Planning Commission for a recommendation. On August 5, the Board of Supervisors 

will hold a Public Hearing. On August 19, the Board of Supervisors will take action on the 

Plan.  Plan Expiration is August 30, 2019.  

 

Conditionally Approved Plans: 

 

1. Hummel Subdivision: Plan shall be recorded by August 4, 2019 

2. Ferguson Township Public Works Facility: Plan shall be recorded by August 2, 2019 

 

Tentative Schedule moving forward with the Zoning and SALDO Update: 

 

June 24  Planning Commission to reviewed changes 

and had comments. Staff has gathered all 

remaining  comments  and  sent  to  the 

consultant with the hopes we will receive a 

memo  from  EPD  outlining  where  these 

changes  have  been made,  satisfying  staff 

and the Planning Commission   

 

July 8, 2019  Planning Commission to review the memo 

from  EPD  and  the  changes,  then make  a 

recommendation to the BOS.   

 

July 15, 2019  BOS  Authorizes  Advertisement  of  the 

Zoning Ordinance, SALDO and Map.  

 



July 16, 2019  45 day Public Review Period begins   Ordinances  go  to 

CRPC,  CRPA,  County 

Planning  and 

Community 

Development Office 

August 1, 2019  Centre Regional Planning Commission   Prepare  presentation 

for CRPC 

September 14, 2019  End of 45 Day Public Review Period.    

September 16, 2019  Public Hearing of Board of Supervisors   Can  hold  Public 

Hearing any time after 

September 14.  

 

 

Interim Planning & Zoning Director’s Report 
June 26, 2019 

 
1. On June 3, 2019, the Interim Planning & Zoning Director and Zoning Administrator met 

with Joseph Waters and Alexander Piehl to discuss tax parcel18-4-004, which is a Patton 
Township property proposed for Commercial Development. The Ferguson Township 
portion of this property is zoned residential, so we discussed the options. One being a pre-
application conference.  
 

2. On June 4, the Interim Planning & Zoning Director and Zoning Administrator met to discuss 
the Traffic Study for Young Scholars.  

 
3. On June 5, 2019, the Interim Planning & Zoning Director and Zoning Administrator met 

with Carolyn Yagle, EPD, to discuss the SALDO and remaining comments. 
 

4. On June 7, the Interim Planning & Zoning Director and Zoning Administrator met with 
Brandi Robinson to discuss an approxmiatly 8 acre property in Pine Grove Mills and how 
it could be potentially subdivied.  

 
5. On June 13, The Interim Planning and Zoning Director met with the Township Manager to 

review all changes proposed to the Zoning Ordinance and the SALDO and discussed the 
schedule moving forward; the Zoning Administrator met with the Township Engineer to 
discuss the requirements for the traffic study and if the school can continue adding students 
when they are over their agreed upon enrollment numbers; The Interim Planning and 
Zoning Director met with the Township Manager to discuss Hunters Chase and the existing 
park land options.  

 



 

 

- A Home Rule Municipality - 

 

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 

Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 

www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 

 

  
 

Public Works Director’s Report to the Board of Supervisors 

for the regular meeting on July 1, 2019 

1. Proposed Public Works Maintenance Facility– Keller Engineering is addressing technical 
review comments on the NPDES permit application. The land development plan will be 
recorded after final comments are addressed. The building permit will be ready to be picked up 
after contract award is issued. The project will be out to bid in August for a bid opening on 
October 1, 2019. Subject to satisfactory bids, a recommendation for award will be made in 
2019 for a planned start of construction in March 2020. 

2. Stormwater Fee Study Phase 2 – The third meeting of the Stormwater Advisory Committee 
was held on June 5, 2019. Elizabeth Treadway of Wood provided the Board of Supervisors 
with an update at the last regular BOS meeting. The next meeting of the SAC is on July 17, 
2019. 

3. Arborist and Ferguson Township Tree Commission – The next FTTC meeting is planned 
for July 15, 2019. Recent topics of discussion have included the FTTC involvement in the land 
development review process, work on a potential tree preservation ordinance and a tree 
canopy survey. 

4. Maintenance Section: Work activities for week of June 24, 2019 include: inlet repairs, road 
preparation for microsurfacing including base repair, and street sweeping. Vehicle and fleet 
maintenance is ongoing as well as completion of various work orders. Work planned for the 
week of July 1st includes brush collection, leaf collection, and street sweeping. 

5. Engineering Section: Engineering staff continues to work on land development plan reviews, 
administer the MS4 program including conducting stormwater inspections, administer the 2019 
construction contracts and conducting capital project inspections. GIS technicians continue 
work on developing the impervious layer for the stormwater fee study and supporting the 
needs of all departments. Staff is evaluating work order systems and asset management 
systems. 

6. Contract 2017-C1 Kansa Avenue: Work is complete. Punch list items remain. 

7. Contract 2018-C20 Park Hills Drainageway Design: This project team led by NTM is 
designing “naturalistic” improvements to this eroded drainageway being sensitive to the mature 
tree canopy, nearby residents, DEP requirements for working in a “stream”, and utility and right 
of way concerns. A pre-application meeting with PaDEP and other agencies was held on May 
13, 2019. The design team completed a preliminary estimate of construction cost which 
exceeds estimated CIP projected budget costs. Staff will review the scope and projected cost 
of the project with the Board during review of the CIP. 



 

 

 

8. Contract 2019-C1 Street Improvement Projects (North): This contract was awarded to 
Glenn O Hawbaker and includes work on Appletree Circle, Avebury Circle, Dogwood Circle, 
Park Lane, and Princeton Drive. Work is planned to start July 2, 2019. 

9. Contract 2019-C2 Street Improvement Projects (West): This project including paving and 
improvements to West Blade (turn around), Brooklawn Drive, Goddard Circle, Ramblewood 
Road, Timothy Lane cul-de-sac, and a portion of Tadpole Road was awarded to Grannas Bros. 
Work is underway. A section of Tadpole Road was paved.  

10. Contract 2019-C5 Pipe video assessment: A request for quotes is being prepared for pipe 
video and assessment for the Chestnut Ridge neighborhood that was not already done, and 
pipes in advance of next year’s paving projects. 

11. Contract 2019-C8 Pavement Marking: This work was awarded to Alpha Space Control and 
work planned for this spring/summer is complete. Other municipalities piggyback on this 
contract. The contractor will return in the fall after road projects are completed to finish the 
contract. The intersection restriping at Bristol and West College Avenue was completed. 

12. Contract 2019-C9 Microsurfacing: This work was awarded to Asphalt Paving Systems for 
work to be completed in July and August. Microsurfacing in Ferguson Township is planned for 
the following streets: 

Road Name From Street To Street 

Tadpole Rd Marengo Rd Gatesburg Rd 
Gardner Ln Whitehall Rd End 
Timothy Ln Whitehall Rd cul-de-sac 
W Blade Dr End Timothy Ln 
W Blade Dr Timothy Ln Gardner Ln 
E Blade Dr Gardner Ln Gardner Ln 

      

Pine Cliff Rd Autumnwood Dr Science Park 
Ct. 

Pine Hall Rd S. Foxpointe Dr Science Park 
Ct. 

   
      

Farmstead Ln Circleville Rd Birkshire 
      

Harris St E Aaron Dr North Hills Pl 
Harris St North Hills Pl Clinton Ave 

Curtain St E Aaron Dr North Hills Pl 
Curtain St North Hills Pl Clinton Ave 

North Hills Pl Atherton St End 
Clinton Ave Atherton St End 

      

Sandy Dr Science Park 
Rd 

Science Park 
Rd 

      
Stonebridge Dr Sheffield Dr Bristol Ave 



 

 

 

Stonebridge Dr 
(West side split) Whitehall Rd Sheffield Dr 

Westover Dr Sheffield Dr Sheffield 
Manor Ct Westover Dr Westover Dr 

Shieffield Dr Stonebridge Dr Stonebridge Dr 
Shieffield Ct Sheffield Dr Sheffield Dr 
Raleigh Ave Sheffield Dr Shellers Bend 

 

13. Contract 2019-C10 Sealcoating Bikepaths and Parking Lots: This contract was awarded to 
Crilon Corporation. Work is planned for July or August. 

14. Contract 2019-C11 Sidewalk Repairs: Bids for this project were opened on June 11, 2019. 
Notices to repair sidewalks will be mailed to property owners this week. Residents that receive 
a repair notice will also be provided our contract unit prices to repair the sidewalk and asked to 
inform us if they choose to repair the sidewalks themselves. Property owners are billed for the 
cost to repair sidewalks. 

15. Contract 2019-C27 Radar Detection: Utilizing Green Light Go grant round 4 funds, a contract 
will be advertised on July 15th for a bid opening on July 30th to install radar detection at the 
following 3 intersections: Blue Course Drive/Havershire Bouldvard, Blue Course 
Drive/Westerly Parkway, West College Avenue/Scuence Park Road. 

 




